MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 4, 1991

21ST BOARD OF REPRESENTATIVES

STAMFORD, CONNECTICUT

A regular monthly meeting of the 21st Board of Representatives of the City of Stamford, Connecticut was held on Wednesday, September 4, 1991, in the Legislative Chambers of the Board of Representatives, Government Center, 888 Washington Boulevard, Stamford, Connecticut.

The meeting was called to order at 9:15 p.m. after both political parties had met in Caucus.

INVOCATION was given by Rep. John J. Hogan, D-12.

"Let us pray. Almighty God, we ask Your blessing on this Board of Representatives. That You guide us in our deliberations. That the decisions we come to will be fair, just, equitable and in the best interest of all of the people of this city. Grant us, O God, that by loving You, we may love and respect each other and live according to Your law. We ask You to watch over our country, whose heart is troubled during these trying times and bring this nation the happiness and prosperity it desires for all of its people. Grant us that we may live as a community in truth, peace and love. Amen"

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was led by President Sandra Goldstein.

ROLL CALL was taken by Clerk of the Board Anne M. Summerville. There were 35 members present and five absent. Absent were Richard Lyons (excused), Garry Clemmons, W. Dennis White, Elaine Mitchell (excused) and Ellen Bromley (excused).

The Chair declared a quorum.

MACHINE TEST VOTE: Test votes were taken by by President Sandra Goldstein and the machine was in good working order.

The Chair noted that W. Dennis White joined the meeting while the test vote was in progress. There were 36 members present and four absent.

MOMENTS OF SILENCE:

For the late DENNIS L. STEVENSON requested by Reps. Michael Larobina, D-16, Sandra Goldstein, D-16, Stanley Esposito, R-11, Thomas Pia, R-7, Frank Mollo, D-9, and John R. Zelinsky, D-11. "Mr. Stevenson was a Captain in the Stamford Fire Department for twenty-four years. For the past eleven years, he commanded the Woodside Fire House. He was a resident of the City of Stamford for thirty years and resided in the 16th District on Pepperidge Road. His passing will be of great loss to the City of Stamford and his friends and family. Mr. Stevenson was the son-in-law to Patrick Scarella, a member of the City Committee. Sincerest sympathy and condolences to his family."

2.

MOMENTS OF SILENCE: (continued)

For the late FLORENCE E. DUNN requested by Reps. Nicholas Pavia, R-10 and John J. Boccuzzi, D-2. "Ms. Dunn was a dear friend and constituent. She will always be remembered for her smile and kind words. She will be greatly missed. Sincerest sympathy is extended to her sister, Dorothy."

For the late ESTELIA DALY requested by Reps. David Blum, D-12, Nicholas Pavia, R-10, Thomas Pia, R-7 and John Zelinsky, D-11. "Mrs. Daly was the wife of the late Frank Daly. She was the mother of Robert Daly, a member of the Democratic City Committee. She is survived by sons, Robert, Richard and Charles and daughters Dorothy, Carol and Marie. Sincerest sympathy is extended to her family."

For the late PEARL DAVIDOFF requested by Rep. David I. Blum, D-12. "Mrs. Davidoff died August 26 at the age of 103. Sincerest sympathy is extended to her family."

For the late LOUIS LOTSTEIN requested by Rep. Stanley Esposito, R-11. "Sincerest sympathy is extended to his family."

For the late JACK REYNOLDS requested by Rep. Stanley Esposito, R-11. "Sincerest sympathy is extended to his family."

STANDING COMMITTEES

STEERING COMMITTEE: Chairperson Sandra Goldstein

REPORT.

MR. BOCCUZZI Moved to waive the reading of the Steering Committee report. Seconded. Approved by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

The Steering Committee met on Wednesday, August 14, 1991, in the Democratic Caucus Room of the Government Center, 888 Washington Boulevard. The meeting was called to order at 6:50 p.m. by Chairwoman Sandra Goldstein who declared a quorum.

Present at the meeting:

Sandra Goldstein, Chairwoman Frank Mollo Mildred Perillo Judith Evanko Annie Summerville Ruth Powers David Jachimczyk John Zelinsky Scott Morris David Blum
Michael Larobina
Roberet DeLuca
John Boccuzzi
Thomas Pia
Carmen Domonkos
Dominick Cardillo
Ellen Bromley
Peter Nanos

David Martim Richard Lyons Audrey Maihock John Zimmerman Stanley Esposito Pam Harris, LWV John Roman, WSTC Anne Kachaluba

STEERING COMMITTEE REPORT: (continued)

<u>APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda were all eight items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Voting no to place the items on the Agenda were Reps. Annie Summerville and David Blum.

FISCAL COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were four of the nine items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda and the four items appearing on the Addenda. Ordered Held in Steering were two items; \$166,888 for the Purchasing Department and \$100,000 for the Law Department. Ordered on the Pending Agenda was \$725,000 Department of Public Works for storage building. Ordered off the Agenda was \$146,000 Department of Traffic and Parking as this was defeated by the Board of Finance.

LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were seven of the 13 items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered moved to the Coliseum Authority Liaison Committee was one item regarding audit report on Coliseum Authority and Stamford Center for the Arts. Ordered on the Pending Agenda were five items; Payment of late taxes by personal check; Proposed ordinance amending Sec. 231-46 of the Code re truck parking on residential streets; Review of double parking fines recommended by Cove/East Side Neighborhood Plan; Proposed ordinance re misrepresentation of budget or expense line items and Establishment by ordinance of new agency called "Municipal Accounting Office.". Ordered off the Pending Agenda were two items; Amending Resolution No. 1917 re written policy personal use of city owned vehicles and Commercial vehicles taking parking spaces for long periods of time.

<u>PERSONNEL COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered off the Agenda were the two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered on the Agenda was one item from the Pending Agenda; Application for grant offered by Federal Mediation & Conciliation Service to improve labor/management relations.

<u>PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda were all four items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>PUBLIC WORKS & SEWER COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda was one of the four items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered on the Agenda was one of the three items appearing on the Addenda. Ordered Held in Steering were two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered off the Agenda was Status report on West Avenue repair/reconstruction project and two items appearing on the Addenda; Proposed ordinance concerning septic tank disposal fees (this was the second submission) and petition for emission testing for incinerator. Ordered off the Pending Agenda was the proposed ordinance concerning septic tank disposal fees (first request).

<u>HEALTH & PROTECTION COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda were the five items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered off the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Addenda; Update on Emergency Medical Services to resolve situation.

<u>PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE</u> - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Addenda; Matter of lights at Boyle Stadium.

STEERING COMMITTEE REPORT: (continued)

EDUCATION. WELFARE & GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were the two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Rep. Audrey Maihock abstained on the item concerning the amending of Ordinance No. 648 Concerning budgetary procedures for the Stamford Community Development Program. Rep. Annie Summerville abstained on the item concerning Status report on various Housing Authority activities funded by the Stamford Community Development Program.

URBAN RENEWAL COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were six of the seven items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered off the Agenda was the Review of parking meter rates on streets and municipal parking lots, etc. Ordered on the Pending Agenda were the two items appearing on the Addenda; Installation of traffic signal at Glenbrook Road and Hope Street and Traffic survey for the Strawberry Hill Avenue, Hoyt Street, etc. intersection.

HOUSE COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>COLISEUM AUTHORITY LIAISON COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda were the two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda and one item moved from Legislative and Rules Committee concerning audit report on Coliseum Authority and Stamford Center for the Arts.

<u>LABOR RELATIONS COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda were the three items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Pending Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda; Report on Southwestern Regional Planning Agency.

<u>DOWNTOWN REVIEW COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered Held in Steering was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered Held in Steering was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>RESOLUTIONS</u> - Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>ADJOURNMENT</u> - There being no further business to come before the Steering Committee, upon a motion made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:35 p.m.

Sandra Goldstein, Chairwoman Steering Committee

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE - Mildred Perillo, Chairwoman

MRS. PERILLO said the Appointments Committee held two meetings. The first meeting was on Tuesday, August 27, 1991, at 7:00 p.m. Present were Mildred Perillo, Robert DeLuca, Patricia McGrath, Thomas Pia, Ellen Mellis, John Boccuzzi and Michael Fedele. A reconvened meeting was held this evening at 6:45 p.m. Present were Mildred Perillo, Robert DeLuca, Thomas Pia, Patricia McGrath, Ellen Mellis, Michael Fedele, Annie Summerville and Gloria DePina.

Mrs. Perillo said the Committee voted six in favor with one abstention to place item one on the Consent Agenda. On item two, Mrs. Perillo said the Committee voted six in favor with one abstention to place item two on the Consent Agenda.

HEALTH COMMISSION

TERM EXPIRES

1. DR. BERT BALLIN (D)
Stone Hill Drive
(Held in Steering 7/17/91)

Reappointment.

12/1/92

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA WITH TWO ABSTENTION, MRS. PERILLO AND MR. BLUM.

BOARD OF TAX REVIEW

2. SYDNEY C. KWESKIN, ESQ. (R)
Lakeside Drive

Replacing A. Painter

12/1/92

who resigned.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA WITH ONE ABSTENTION, MRS. PERILLO.

GOLF AUTHORITY

3. MR. CHRISTOPHER BELLO (D) 60 Crescent Street

Reappointment.

1/1/93

HELD IN COMMITTEE

GOLF AUTHORITY

4. MR. JOHN VALMIS (D)
16 Bouton Street

Reappointment.

1/1/92

MRS. PERILLO said the Committee voted five in favor with four abstentions to approve Mr. Valmis. Moved. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to approve John Valmis to the Golf Authority. APPROVED by voice vote with one no vote, Mr. Blum and eight abstentions, Mr. Larobina, Mr. White, Mrs. Mellis, Mrs. Perillo, Ms. DePina, Mr. Martin, Ms. Summerville and Mrs. Domonkos.

6.

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE: (continued)

GOLF AUTHORITY

TERM EXPIRES

5. MR. FRANCIS VALLUZZO (R)
34 Prudence Drive

Reappointment.

1/1/92

MRS. PERILLO said the Committee voted five in favor with four abstentions to approve Mr. Valluzzo. Moved. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve Mr. Valluzzo to the Golf Authority. APPROVED by voice vote with ten abstention, Mrs. Perillo, Mr. Larobina, Mr. White, Mrs. Nakian, Mr. Martin, Ms. Summerville, Mr. Blum, Mrs. Mellis, Ms. DePina, and Mrs. Domonkos.

GOLF AUTHORITY

6. MS. ESTHER TISANO (D)
169 Knox Road

Reappointment.

1/1/93

MRS. PERILLO said the Committee voted five in favor with four abstentions to approve Ms. Tisano. Moved. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve Ms. Tisano to the Golf Authority. APPROVED by voice vote with ten abstentions, Mrs. Perillo, Mr. White, Mr. Larobina, Mrs. Mellis, Mr. Martin, Mrs. Nakian, Ms. Summerville, Mr. Blum, Ms. DePina and Mrs. Domonkos.

GOLF AUTHORITY

7. MR. JOHN J. PEDONE (R) 32 Maryanne Lane Reappointment

1/1/94

HELD IN COMMITTEE

GOLF AUTHORITY

8. MR. CHARLES LUPINACCI (R) 90 Brookdale Drive

Reappointment.

1/1/94

HELD IN COMMITTEE (Mr. Lupinacci could not attend the meeting)

MRS. PERILLO Moved for approval of the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote with Mrs. Perillo abstaining on items one and two; Mr. Blum abstained on item one.

MR. RUBINO asked why Mr. Bello and Mr. Pedone were Held in Committee?

MRS. PERILLO said that she was told that Mr. Bello's name was sent to the Mayor by mistake. She said that on item seven, the Committee asked Mr. Pedone some questions and a letter was received from a gentleman that verified what the Committee asked Mr. Pedone. Mrs. Perillo said that the Committee felt the name should be held and the letter sent to the Mayor.

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE: (continued)

MR. RUBINO wanted clarification on Mr. Bello. He asked Mrs. Perillo if Mr. Bello's name was sent by mistake to the Mayor by the Democratic City Committee?

MRS. PERILLO stated that that was what she was told.

MR. RUBINO asked if the Mayor still submitted the name to the Board?

MRS. PERILLO stated that this was told to her after the name was submitted to the Committee and the appointment was set up. She said this was told to the Mayor after the name came to the Committee and the appointment set up. Mrs. Perillo stated the name was already put on the Agenda. She said when the Mayor's office received the notice, they called her. Mrs. Perillo said the fault was with the City Committee.

MR. RUBINO Moved to take item three out of Committee. Seconded.

MRS. McGRATH had a Point of Information. She asked if a vote can be taken on someone that was not interviewed?

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN stated that we could vote; the motion was appropriate.

MR. RUBINO stated that Mrs. McGrath raised a good point. Mr. Rubino stated that his impression was that Mr. Lupinacci could not attend the interview and Mr. Bello and Mr. Pedone came for the interview.

MRS. PERILLO said that was not correct. She said that Mr. Bello was away on vacation and she received a call from his father stating that Christopher could not make the meeting. Mrs. Perillo said that she explained to Christopher's father that the message she received from the City Committee was that the name was sent in error.

MR. RUBINO withdrew his motion. The Seconder also withdrew.

FISCAL COMMITTEE - Richard Lyons, Chairman

Mr. Lyons was absent, Ms. Powers reported for the Fiscal Committee.

MS. POWERS said the Fiscal Committee met twice. She said the first meeting was on Wednesday, August 28, 1991, at 7:00 p.m. Present were Committee members Gerald Rybnick, John Zimmerman, David Martin, Ruth Powers, and Nicholas Pavia. She said there were others present concerning various items; John Brown of CTE, Sandra Dennies and other people that would be on the staff of the incarceration center; Mary Lou Rinaldi and Sandra Dennies were present on the Greenbelt item, and John Hinchcliffe concerning item three.

Ms. Powers said there was no quorum so the Committee met again this evening at 6:00 p.m. Present were Committee members Gerald Rybnick, John Zimmerman, Stanley Esposito, Nicholas Pavia, David Martin and Ruth Powers.

Ms. Powers placed items two and six on the Consent Agenda. All Secondary Committees concurred or waived the Secondary Committee report.

1. \$175,000.00 - STAMFORD AMBULANCE CORPS. INC. - CODE 470.4380 STAMFORD AMBULANCE CORPS - additional appropriation for funding operations beyond 6/30/91. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 7/11/91. Board of Finance approved 8/8/91. Held in Committee 8/5/91.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

MS. POWERS said the Committee approved item one by a vote of 6-0-0. She Moved for approval. The Health and Protection Committee concurred.

Ms. Powers said the item was before the Board last month for \$350,000. She said the Corps was out of money and this money would carry them over until July 1, 1992. Ms. Powers stated that there may be some changes in the entire EMS set up by perhaps the end of January. Ms. Powers stated that the Corps was asked if the appropriation was cut to \$175,000 would that be sufficient and they said that it would be. She said the Board of Finance approved \$175,000.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote to approve \$175,000 for the Stamford Ambulance Corps operations. APPROVED by a vote of 34 yes votes with two absentions.

\$ 60,000.00 - REGISTRARS OF VOTERS OFFICE - CODE 101.3140 PRIMARY LOCAL - additional appropriation for municipal primary on September 11, 1991. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 7/31/91. Board of Finance approved 8/8/91.

Above also referred to EDUCATION, WELFARE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA WITH TWO ABSTENTIONS, MR, MORRIS AND MR. ZELINSKY,

3. \$ 70,000.00 - EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES - DEPARTMENT 485 - AMENDMENT TO CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET - additional appropriation for replacement of one (1) ambulance type vehicle to be used as a fly car. To be funded by taxation. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 7/18/91. Board of Finance approved 8/8/91. (Note: The original request was for replacement of two (2) emergency response vehicles used in paramedic advanced life support, prehospital emergency medical services)

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

MS. POWERS said the Committee voted 6-0-0 to approve for the purchase of one ambulance type vehicle to be used as a fly car. She said the original appropriation was for two fly cars. She said that when EMS came before the Committee on August 28, the Committee asked if an ambulance could be used in lieu of fly cars and were told that it could not.

Ms. Powers said that she checked with the state at Mr. Hinchcliffe's instructions and the state stated that we could buy an ambulance type vehicle as long as it did not say "ambulance" on the vehicle.

MS. POWERS stated that if the combination of services is had, the vehicle that was promised to be provided within the year was an additional ambulance. She said the Committee felt that the additional ambulance should be ordered, bids go out and use the vehicle as a fly car which could later be outfitted as an ambulance when and if the combination of services becomes effective.

Ms. Powers Moved for approval of \$70,000 for EMS capital projects for one ambulance type vehicle to be used as a fly car. Seconded.

MR. DeLUCA said the \$70,000 calls for two emergency response vehicles and the comments are in regards to an ambulance that can be used as a fly car. He asked what would really be purchased, one vehicle or two vehicles?

MS. POWERS said that one vehicle is to be bought; the original request came down for two vehicles which would be private passenger type blazers. She said a letter was received from the Board of Finance and discussion was had in Committee on the 28th, that it would be more appropriate to get an ambulance type vehicle which could also transport when and if they have transport capabilities. Ms. Powers said that no matter what happens, more ambulances will be needed in the city. Ms. Powers said that rather than buying a private passenger vehicle that would be obsolete should any combination of services take place, the ambulance type vehicle could be utilized.

MR. DeLUCA wanted more clarification on the matter. He said if it is decided not to buy the ambulance and two emergency response vehicles are bought, would the two vehicles be obsolete in a few years?

MS. POWERS said that that was incorrect. She said they would be obsolete should there be a combination of services and the one vehicle to transport is no longer used and another vehicle to provide EMS service.

MR. DeLUCA questioned that the request is for two vehicles for \$70,000 and now the discussion is on buying one vehicle for \$70,000.

MS. POWERS said that one vehicle is being bought costing \$70,000; the original appropriation was for two fly cars costing approximately \$35,000 each. She said the item will go out to bid.

MR. DeLUCA asked how the motion will be framed?

MS. POWERS said the motion would be for one ambulance type vehicle to be used as a fly car.

MR. MARTIN said that the EMS fly cars are breaking down and two fly cars are almost down all the time and the problem has to be addressed. He said if there was not going to be a combination of services, then the prudent thing to do would be to replace the two broken down fly cars with two new ones; that was a recommendation as EMS does not know for certain what is going to happen. Mr. Martin said that if services are combined, fly cars are not needed and an ambulance will be needed withing the next year. Mr. Martin stated that the recommendation of the Fiscal Committee was to buy an ambulance type vehicle because that is what is going to be needed.

MR. PIA asked what the difference would be between the ambulance to be purchased and one with the word "ambulance" on the vehicle? He asked if the interior of the ambulance would be complete?

MS. POWERS said that it would be complete except for the lettering and cost as it will not be a transport vehicle. She said the vehicle to be purchased will only have to have minor adjustments made once converted to a transport.

MRS. PERILLO said that the Board of Finance voted on the item as two vehicles and now the Board is changing the item to one that will not be transporting, therefore, no money will be coming back as no one can be charged because they are not transporting. Mrs. Perillo asked if it is legal to change the request? She wanted to be sure that it is correct for the Board to vote on the item in view of the fact that it is being changed.

MS. POWERS stated that it is not being changed to an ambulance, that it will still be a fly car. She said the vehicle will be one that can be converted to an ambulance. Mrs. Powers said the vehicle will cost more than the private passenger fly car. She said the specifications are not being changed as to the use of the vehicle.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote to appropriate \$70,000 for Emergency Medical Services for one ambulance type vehicle to be used as a fly car. APPROVED by voice vote with five no votes, Mrs. Perillo, Mrs. McGrath, Mr. Johnson, Mr. DeLuca and Mr. Pia.

4. \$ 11.087.00 - PERSONNEL DEPARTMENT - CODE 270.1110 SALARIES FOR FISCAL YEAR 1991/92 - additional appropriation for funding for two Personnel Analyst II positions eliminated from the '91/92 budget. One Analyst is assigned to Employee Benefits Office and one to manage Civil Service exam program. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 7/29/91. Board of Finance approved 8/8/91.

Above also referred to PERSONNEL COMMITTEE.

MS. POWERS said the Committee voted 6-0-0 to approve and Moved for approval. She said that she received information in regards to the item and would share it with the Board if anyone wanted her to do so.

MR. MORRIS Moved to waive the Secondary Committee report. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to waive the report. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

MR. DeLUCA asked if Mr. Bernstein came to speak to the Committee regarding the item?

MS. POWERS said that Mr. Bernstein called her before the meeting; he was unable to attend the meeting.

MR. DeLUCA asked if Mr. Bernstein said anything about his present staff; did he indicate whether or not he can reallocate the work? Mr. DeLuca said that in the Board of Representatives' office, the researcher position was lost and now when information has to be obtained, work is reallocated. Mr. DeLuca felt that Mr. Bernstein should have appeared before the Committee or sent his assistant to answer any questions.

MR. DeLUCA Moved to return item four to Committee to have the Personnel Director or Assistant appear before the Committee to answer questions. Seconded.

MS. POWERS stated that when she Moved the item for approval, she stated that she received information and would share it with the Board if anyone had any questions. She stated that she would be happy to hold the item and have someone from Personnel present. She said she would be happy to give the information to the Board.

Ms. Powers said that the appropriation was not for additional people. She stated that two people in the department who retired were Personnel Analyst II; one was an employees benefit person and the other who wrote civil service examinations. Ms. Powers stated that this was putting the two people who are Personnel Analyst I into the Personnel Analyst II positions. She said the Personnel Analyst 1 positions will not be filled.

MR. BLUM asked if the persons took the civil services examinations for the position of Analyst II?

MS. POWERS said that she did not think to ask that question and would be happy to get an answer for Mr. Blum.

MR. BLUM said if the persons now being promoted did not take the exam, the request is not properly before the Board as an examination must be taken first and then the request for the difference in salary is made.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN proceeded to a vote to return to Committee \$11,087 for the Personnel Department salaries. APPROVED by a vote of 18 yes, 13 no votes with two abstentions.

5. THE MATTER OF THE LOCATION OF THE DAY INCARCERATION CENTER. Submitted by Rep. Richard Lyons, D-1, 8/14/91.

MS. POWERS said that the successful bidder and Sandra Dennies, Grants Director voluntarily came to the Committee to update the Committee on the matter. Ms. Powers said that John Brown, of CTE and the people running the program currently in Stamford also attended the meeting.

Ms. Powers said the Committee was impressed with the information given by those attending the meeting. She said there was no neighborhood opposition to the center. Ms. Powers said there were 40 people in the program; 15 are on-site and 25 are off-site who are escorted to and from their homes and monitored electronically. Ms. Powers said their is a staff of 20 people. She said a report from the state was sent to all members; the report indicated the approval of the bidder and the favorably impression as to the way the program is being run. Ms. Powers stated that a letter from the Zoning Enforcement Officer was received concerning any variance that may be needed.

6. PROPOSED RESOLUTION CONERNING PAYMENT-IN-LIEU-OF-TAXES (PILOT). The assessed taxes currently total \$1,075,563, and the City will receive up to 100% of that amount based on the rate established for this year. Last year the rate was 77.613%. The program pertains to moderate rent State-financed housing managed by the Housing Authority of the City. Submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani, 8/6/91.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA WITH TWO NO VOTES, MRS. MAIHOCK AND MR. WHITE AND ONE ABSTENTION, MS. SUMMERVILLE,

7. PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SUBMIT APPLICATION FOR FUNDING FOR THE MILL RIVER GREENBELT PROJECT. City wishes to purchase property at 63 Richmond Hill Avenue to further the Mill River Greenbelt project. DEP will match local funding up to 50% of project costs. Project estimated at \$500,000 - \$700,000. Submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani, 8/12/91.

MS. POWERS said the Committee voted 3-1-2 to approve the resolution and Moved for approval. Seconded.

MR. DeLUCA said the state is matching 50% and the state is having a difficult time to come up with a budget. He said the project is estimated at \$500,000 to \$700,000. Mr. DeLuca stated that we do not know our cost; it could be \$250,000 or \$350,000 and at the present time, when all taxpayers in the city and the state are being asked to cut back, he would like to see his colleagues vote against the item as the money could be used for something more worthwhile. Mr. DeLuca said that he sees very few people walking along Washington Boulevard and the maintenance of the area has much to be desired. Mr. DeLuca said that it was time to say that the Greenbelt is finished for now and that the city can no longer afford a luxury such as the Greenbelt.

MR. RYBNICK said he thought it was wrong to spend \$500,000 to \$700,000 at this time for the purchase of the parcel of land known as the Greenbelt. Mr. Rybnick stated that if we can acquire this amount of money, we should use it more properly and more wisely such as for sidewalks on Weed Avenue. He said the sidewalks are needed badly, and the people who walk or jog along this one mile strip of roadway take their life into their own hands. Mr. Rybnick said that bicycle riders come very close to being near fatalities when cars going in opposite directions speed at the same points.

Mr. Rybnick said that he witnessed a woman pushing a baby carriage and a child hanging on to her on each side and the cars came so close to the woman that it was frightening to see. Mr. Rybnick stated that something had to be done to this particular street. He said the administration states that money is coming from other than the capital budget. Mr. Rybnick said that it was not the time to spend money on a whim such as the Greenbelt.

MR. ESPOSITO said while this was a worthwhile project, we are in an economic recession and we need to set priorities. Mr. Esposito stated that he did not think that this project deserves to be on the top of the priority list and he will probably vote no on the item.

MR. STORK said that his position was stated by Mr. DeLuca on the matter. Mr. Stork said that after the last two fiscal years, the city laid off approximately 225 employees and in honor of those people, he will dedicate his no vote to them.

MR. BOCCUZZI said that he would speak in favor of the appropriation. Mr. Boccuzzi said that there is a great difference in the area of the Greenbelt. He said that the land to be purchased is needed for the continuation of the Greenbelt. Mr. Boccuzzi said the property is an eyesore and makes it difficult to travel at night; he said stopping at the light there, one must be ready to have his foot on the gas pedal to move when the light changes.

Mr. Boccuzzi said the area is a much better place to walk through, to drive by and to live. He said that the people living across the street go across and help to police the Greenbelt because it is open space and that the city needs open space. Mr. Boccuzzi stated that the three representatives whose district are in the area agree that they would like to see the Greenbelt continue. Mr. Boccuzzi said the money for the project is in capital projects and the money is not new money, therefore, he said it was a continuation of the project which was started many years ago by Mayor Wilensky.

Mr. Boccuzzi asked that his fellow representatives vote in favor of the project.

MR. ZIMMERMAN said that he has been a long supporter of the Greenbelt and unlike other who have supported the Greenbelt in the past, he still supports the Greenbelt. He said that he is a fervent supporter of the vision, however, that was not the reason for his support for this particular parcel. Mr. Zimmerman also stated that the parcel was an eyesore, a building that lies in the floodplain and is vulnerable in the case of a flood of the sort that came in 1955. Mr. Zimmerman also stated that the building contained people and people live there. He said that was a concern of his, however, under state regulations, not one person will be displaced by the project. Mr. Zimmerman said that he will vote for the resolution for funding for the Greenbelt project.

MR. MOLLO Moved the question. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to Move the question. DEFEATED by voice vote.

MR. WHITE stated that park land has to be bought when it becomes available. He said if land is not bought when available, it is probably lost for all time or at least the conceivable future. Mr. White said that Stamford needs park land and open space and especially open space downtown. He said that all the arguments used now against open space were used against Cove Island and 80 or 90 years ago against Cummings Park, and look at the joy these places have given to the people of Stamford. Mr. White said the talk of undesirable things happening also occur in Central Park but Central Park is not given away. Mr. White said that if there is one thing that the present administration has done to its credit, is that it has pushed the open space plan downtown. Mr. White stated that if the property is not bought now, we will lose the property. He urged his fellow representatives to support the resolution.

MR. BLUM stated that the Greenbelt started at Scalzi Park and came down to 66 West Main Street. He said the Soup Kitchen was located there and it was torn down to make room for the Greenbelt. Mr. Blum said that open space is needed as well as affordable housing. He said that he was against the building being torn down and would like to see the building rehabilitated.

MR. ZELINSKY asked if there was a breakdown for the projected estimated cost of between \$500,000 and \$700,000?

MS. POWERS said that there will be two appraisals made on the property.

MR. ZELINSKY asked if that was just for the property or to demolish the building for conversation to the Greenbelt?

MS. POWERS said that to convert to the Greenbelt, all that is done is the demolition of the building and planting of grass.

MR. ZELINSKY said he did not know if the building was a two or three family building and with the present situation in the real estate market, it seemed like an awful lot of money for one piece of property.

Mr. Zelinsky said that he sympathized with some of the comments made especially those of the representatives in the particular district. Mr. Zelinsky said he wondered if approving the funds would eliminate the problem of crime, etc.? He said that at this time with the lay off of employees in the city, it is a difficult decision to make.

Mr. Zelinsky said there is a Demolition Board to look into buildings that are deteriorating; he did not know if this was the situation here. Mr. Zelinsky stated that the Demolition Board could vote to demolish the building and the cost would be borne not by the city or the taxpayers, but by the owner of the building.

MR. FEDELE said that factual things must be looked at in regards to the resolution. He said whether it is old money or new money, money is money. Mr. Fedele said that the money comes from the same people whether it is capital or expense and the city does not have a lot of money to proceed with this type of project at this time.

Mr. Fedele stated that as a member of the Parks and Recreation Committee, he frequently hears from the Parks and Recreation Director that they are having a very difficult time in these fiscal times to maintain the existing parks. Mr. Fedele said that realistically, the property has been there for a long time and the property is not going anywhere. Mr. Fedele stated that he disagreed with some of the comments made this evening that the buildings are deteriorating and by knocking them down, it will improve the area. He said if the Board takes that approach, buildings will be knock down all over the city. He said that at one time, the Arthur Estate in Glenbrook was talked about for open space but nothing ever happened to acquire it. Mr. Fedele said that open space is a great idea in financially good times. He said that fiscal responsibility dictates that there are more important things to do with the money than to continue with the Greenbelt, and said he believed that the properties needed to continue with the Greenbelt will be there when hopefully, we'll be back in good fiscal times.

MRS. McGRATH Moved the question. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to Move the question. APPROVED by voice vote.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote to approve the resolution authorizing the Mayor to submit an application for funding for the Mill River Greenbelt project for the purchase of property at 63 Richmond Hill Avenue. APPROVED by a vote of 17 yes, 14 no votes with four abstentions.

 MATTER OF TAX COLLECTOR REFUSING TO ACCEPT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX ON AUTOMOBILES THAT ARE LEASED. Submitted by Rep. Michael D. Larobina, D-16, 8/14/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MS. POWERS said the Committee voted to write a letter to Corporation Counsel for clarification on the matter.

MR. POWERS Moved for approval of the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to approve the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote with Mrs. Maihock and Mr. White voting no on item six. Ms. Summerville wanted the record to show that she abstained on item six due to a possible conflict of interest. Mr. Morris and Mr. Zelinsky abstained on item two.

MS. POWERS Moved to Suspend the Rules to take up a resolution not on the Agenda. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to Suspend the Rules. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

 SENSE-OF-THE-BOARD RESOLUTION REGARDING FERGUSON LIBRARY SERVICES. Submitted by Reps. Carmen Domonkos, D-18 and John R. Zelinsky, D-11, 9/4/91.

MS. POWERS Moved for approval of the resolution. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the resolution. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

MR, RUBINO Moved to Suspend the Rules to take up a resolution not on the Agenda concerning fiscal grants and disbursements by the Coliseum Authority. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to Suspend the Rules. APPROVED by voice vote with a few dissenting votes.

 SENSE-OF-THE-BOARD RESOLUTION REGARDING GRANTS AND DISBURSEMENTS BY COLISEUM AUTHORITY. Submitted by Rep. James Rubino, R-7, 9/4/91.

MR. RUBINO read the resolution. A copy is attached to these Minutes. He Moved for approval. Seconded.

MR. BOCCUZZI said that he understood Mr. Rubino's frustration regarding the item being in L&R for so long, but stated that at this point according to the discussions with the L&R Chairpersons, the ordinance is almost in place and therefore there would be no need for any resolution. Mr. Boccuzzi said the resolution could start another "go around" and the problem is very close to being solved. Mr. Boccuzzi stated that in all due respect to Mr. Rubino, he would ask the Board to wait until the L&R Committee finalizes the proposed ordinance.

MR. DeLUCA said that he disagreed with Mr. Boccuzzi. Mr. DeLuca said that the resolution re-enforces what the Corporation Counsel directed; the Coliseum Authority is not an independent authority and they must submit their budget before the fiscal boards for approval. Mr. DeLuca stated that the resolution is a part of the record that the Board agrees with Corporation Counsel and re-enforces what already has been in place. Mr. DeLuca urged the Board to vote in favor of the resolution.

MR. WHITE said that he agreed with Mr. Boccuzzi. He said that he would not like to handle the resolution at the present time as it could muddy the waters. Mr. White stated that he did not like a resolution such as this one thrust on him all of a sudden. Mr. White also stated that he did not like the wording of the resolution. He said the resolution talks about the ruling of the Corporation Counsel. Mr. White stated that the Corporation Counsel's office does not make any rulings; opinions are received from the office. He said that only courts hand down rulings. Mr. White said that he would not like to establish the precedent or re-establish the precedent or attitude in our city government that Corporation Counsel's office hands down rulings.

MRS. MAIHOCK said that she agreed with Mr. DeLuca that the resolution gives legitimacy to the Corporation Counsel's opinion to guide the Coliseum Authority. She said that at the Committee meeting, a person speaking for the Authority was grateful to understand what the new policy is. Mrs. Maihock said that the resolution rather than muddying the waters, is clarifying them.

MR. LOVALLO asked if the Chairman of the Legislative and Rules Committee could capsulize the difference in the proposed ordinance and the one forthcoming?

MR. MARTIN said that at the L&R meeting, he took the initiative to say that he wanted to see the Coliseum Authority start to submit requests and he already sent a memo to the Acting Director and copied the fiscal boards and the Law Department saying that he would like the Authority to submit the requests and for the Authority to talk to the Law Department to figure out how this should be done. Mr. Martin said that he agreeded with the intent of the resolution and that Mr. Boccuzzi was accurate in his statements. Mr. Martin said the resolution was premature at this time.

MR. BLUM said the creation of the Coliseum Authority came into being on July 15, 1982. He said that some of the things Mr. Rubino is asking for comes as a part of the creation of the Authority. Mr. Blum said that Section 7-130i of the Connecticut General Statutes reads, "the Authority shall further, subject to such prior approval of the Board of Representatives, establish and revise from time to time regulations in respect to the use, operation and occupancy of any such project or the facilities thereof." Mr. Blum stated that the resolution backs what was approved. Mr. Blum urged his colleagues to vote for the resolution.

MR. RUBINO said that in reference to what Mr. Boccuzzi and Mr. Martin stated in not acting now is not germane and could confuse the Board. Mr. Rubino said the resolution deals with the here and now; the resolution deals with the law that is on the books and the Charter. Mr. Rubino stated that the law requires the Coliseum Authority to follow the budget process. He said the resolution does not concern the ordinance that L&R is working on that may never come to pass and in the meantime, the budget process is being violated. Mr. Rubino said that a statement should be made now that the budget process should be respected as there is a lot of money going through the Authority; up to \$1.5 million in some years and it is the duty of the Board to the taxpayers, to make sure the Charter is complied with. Mr. Rubino said the resolution does not make any statements about any ordinances and it doesn't muddy any waters; it asks that the law be complied with. Mr. Rubino stated that Mr. White was correct on the comments he made in regards to Corporation Counsel's letter.

Mr. Rubino Moved to amend the resolution: in the first sentence, strike out "ruled" and replace with "has rendered an opinion". The motion was Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to approve the amendment. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

MR. RUBINO Moved to amend the last paragraph to replace the word "ruling" with "opinion." The motion was Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the amendment. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

MR. BOCCUZZI wanted clarification on Mr. Martin's statement. He asked if Mr. Martin already notified the Coliseum Authority and Corporation Counsel that the Authority must go through the budgetary process in order to reallocate the money?

MR. MARTIN said that what Mr. Boccuzzi asked was correct. Mr. Martin said that each Board member received a memo to that effect, and the Authority has gone to Corporation Counsel to review the ruling.

MR. BOCCUZZI stated that in view of Mr. Martin's memo, the resolution was not needed.

MR. DeLUCA said that he disagreed with Mr. Boccuzzi. He said that Mr. Martin and Mr. Rubino are saying the same thing, therefore, the resolution indicates that the consensus of the Board is that the Coliseum Authority should follow the budgetary process.

 $\underline{\mathtt{MR}}$, $\underline{\mathtt{RUBINO}}$ said that approximately six months ago, the Board of Finance passed a similar resolution.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote to approve the resolution as amended in regards to grants and disbursements by the Coliseum Authority. APPROVED by a vote of 30 yes and five no votes.

LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE - David Martin & Maria Nakian, Co-Chairpersons

MR. MARTIN said the Legislative and Rules Committee held three meetings; the first on Wednesday, August 21, at 4:00 p.m. Present were Committee members Maria Nakian, David Martin, Carmen Domonkos and John Zelinsky; many city department heads were invited; also present was Barry Boodman from the Law Department. Mr. Martin said the second full Committee meeting was held on Monday, August 26, at 7:00. Present were David Martin, Maria Nakian, John Zelinsky, Audrey Maihock, Carmen Domonkos, Elaine Mitchell, Michael Larobina and James Rubino; also present was Rep. David Blum; John Madeo from Fairfield 2000; Howard Quinn from New Neighborhoods; John Smyth from the Law Department; Sandra Dennies from the Coliseum Authority and Commissioner Marge Brown and many members from the Downtown Special Services District primarily represented by Norman Lotstein, Judy Rodwin and Ira Dansky.

Mr. Martin stated that the final meeting was held on Tuesday, September 3, at 7:00 p.m. Present were Committee members David Martin, Maria Nakian, Carmen Domonkos, Ellen Bromley, Stanley Esposito, James Rubino, Michael Fedele, Audrey Maihock and John Zelinsky; also Rep. David Blum; Sim Bernstein, Personnel Director and James Rosecrans, Chairman of the Personnel Appeals Board; Sandra Dennies and Vivien White representing the Coliseum Authority and the Downtown Special Services District Committee and the Chamber of Commerce primarily represented by Norman Lotstein, Ira Dansky, David Anderson and many others.

Mr. Martin placed items two and five on the Consent Agenda.

 (L&R21.31) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE CONCERNING THE STAMFORD COLISEUM AUTHORITY. Submitted by Rep. James Rubino, R-7, 5/16/90. Held in Committee 6/4, 7/9, 12/3/90, 1/7, 2/4, 3/4, 4/1, 5/6, 7/8 and 8/5/91. Returned to Committee 6/3/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

 (L&R21.99) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE FOR THE FORMATION OF A SPECIAL SERVICE DISTRICT IN THE DOWNTOWN STAMFORD AREA. Submitted by the Chamber of Commerce Downtown Retail Management Committee per letter from Schatz & Schatz, Ribicoff & Kotkin, 5/13/91. Held in Committee 6/3, 7/8 and 8/5/91.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA WITH TWO NO VOTES, MRS, MAIHOCK AND MR, PIA AND TWO ABSTENTIONS, MRS, PERILLO AND MR, NANOS,

LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE: (continued)

3. (L&R21.94) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE CONCERNING PROTECTION OF CITY EMPLOYEES WHO DISCLOSE ILLEGAL ACTIVITIES. Submitted by Reps. Maria Nakian, D-20 and David Martin, D-19, 4/15/91. Held in Committee 5/6, 7/8 and 8/5/91. Held on Pending Agenda 5/15/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

4. (L&R21.109) PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A PROTOTYPE LEASE TO BE USED FOR THE STAMFORD TRANSPORTATION CENTER LEASES. Submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani, 6/21/91. Planning Board approved 7/23/91. Board of Finance approved with proviso that execution of individual leases be approved by Board of Finance 8/8/91. Held in Committee 8/5/91.

MR. MARTIN said the Committee voted 7-0-1 to approve the lease. Moved and Seconded.

MR. MARTIN said the prototype lease would be used to sublease various portions of the Stamford Transportation Center to tenants that may be there. Mr. Martin said the Board of Finance and the Planning Board approved the lease; also, a letter was received from Assistant Corporation Counsel John Smyth explaining the specific areas of the lease that could be negotiated. Mr. Smyth also told the Committee that the tenants might also, in certain cases, pay interest on security deposits and rent relief may be provided for temporary lack of services if electricity or power, etc. is cut off.

MR. BLUM said that Stamford is unique because the Transportation Center is not operated by the Transit District. Mr. Blum stated that in many other cities, the Transit Districts operate the Transportation Centers. He said that in Stamford, the Transportation Center is part of the city government operated by the Public Works Department. Mr. Blum said that he was against the lease. He said that state law specifies that Transit Districts operate Transportation Centers in each municipality and in Stamford, we do no comply with that law. Mr. Blum said that at the L&R meeting, he showed copies of the state law to no avail.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote on approving the resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a prototype lease for the Transportation Center. APPROVED by a voice vote with one no vote, Mr. Blum.

5. (L&R21.104) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 669 SUPPLEMENTAL CONCERNING PURCHASING OF SUPPLIES, MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES. Amending to include contract administration and compliance. Submitted by Reps. Maria Nakian, D-20 and David Martin, D-19, 6/3/91. Held on Pending Agenda 6/12/91. Held in Committee 8/5/91.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE: (continued)

- 6. (L&R21.115) REQUEST FOR WAIVER AND REFUND OF BUILDING PERMIT FEE PAID BY STAMFORD WATERSIDE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION IN THE AMOUNT OF \$29,640 ON PERMIT NO. 70605, 5/7/91 FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 75 CONDOMINIUM UNITS ON SOUTHFIELD AVENUE AND SELLECK STREET. Requested by Gerald H. Parks, Chairman, Vice President, Stamford Waterside Development Corp., 4 Stamford Forum 16th Floor, Stamford, CT 06901, 6/27/91.
- MR. MARTIN said the Committee voted 4-3-1 to approve. Moved and Seconded.
- MR. MARTIN stated that to the best of his knowledge, this was the last permit fee that was in process when the resolution was approved saying that we no longer honor waivers and refunds. Mr. Martin said that this request should be honored as it was in process when the resolution was considered.
- MR. DeLUCA asked if the request came in prior to when the resolution was approved? He said that in Caucus, the impression was that it was not.
- MR. MARTIN stated that the item was not before the Board but the request for the building permit was made before the resolution was approved.
- MR. DeLUCA asked how much the units would be selling for? He said that 75 units into the cost of the fee, \$29,640 would add \$395 to the cost of a unit. He said that he did not see that being a hardship on anyone.
- MRS. NAKIAN said that the Committee was told that the cost of the units would be from the \$60,000's to a \$103,000/\$104,000 depending upon the numbers of bedrooms. Mrs. Nakian stated that the site is the former Ryle School that the city sold to Waterside Development Corporation and it has always been known that the site would be used for housing.
- MR. BLUM stated that at the meeting, he asked Waterside Development how much would be saved per unit if the \$29,640 fee is waived and the reply was that it would save them \$300 per unit. Mr. Blum said that he also asked if the units were for affordable housing and who would be eligible. He was told that it was for those with a \$50,000 income. He asked what about those with \$25,000; he said he did not get a good response to the question.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN proceeded to a vote to approve the waiver and refund of \$29,640 paid by Stamford Waterside Development Corporation. APPROVED by a vote of 21 yes, 10 no votes with four abstentions.

 (L&R21.117) MATTER OF BOARD OF REPRESENTATIVES NOT VOTING ON ITEMS UNLESS SUBMITTED TO MEMBERS 48 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING. Submitted by Rep. Thomas Pia, R-7, 7/31/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MR. MARTIN Moved the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to Move the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote with Mrs. Maihock and Mr. Pia voting no on item two and Mrs. Perillo and Mr. Nanos abstaining on item two.

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE - Scott Morris, Chairman

MR. MORRIS said the Personnel Committee meeting originally scheduled for Wednesday, August 21, 1991 was cancelled.

 APPLICATION FOR A GRANT OFFERED BY THE FEDERAL MEDIATION AND CONCILIATION SERVICE (FMCS) TO IMPROVE LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS. Submitted by Reps. Philip R. Stork, R-15 and Sandra Goldstein, D-16, 2/7/91. Held in Committee 3/4 and 4/1/91. Held on Pending Agenda 4/17/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE - David Jachimczyk, Chairman

MR. JACHIMCZYK said the Planning and Zoning Committee met on Thursday, August 29, 1991, at 7:30 p.m. Present were Committee members W. Dennis White, Maria Nakian, Carmen Domonkos, Philip Stork, Nicholas Pavia and David Jachimczyk; Scott Morris was excused. Also in attendance was Rep. Michael Larobina.

 STATUS REPORT ON SENIOR CENTER. Requested by Reps. David Jachimczyk, D-4 and Carmen Domonkos, D-18, 6/6/91. Held in Committee 7/8 and 8/5/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MR. JACHIMCZYK said that Rep. Domonkos reported to the Committee that representatives of various senior groups as well as members of the Commission on Aging, met with Commissioner of Public Works Don Donahue to review preliminary drawings and to suggest changes for the Senior Center. Mr. Jachimczyk said an architect has been hired for the project and the same architect will also being doing the work for the Board of Education for their move into the Government Center; the architect has been hired on an hourly basis since the Public Works Departments hopes to do a lot of the work in-house. Mr. Jachimczyk said that the final drawings and specifications should be ready by September 15. He said that Ms. Domonkos noted to the Committee that the city cannot make a claim for the \$250,000 state grant that has been set aside for the center until the final drawings and specs are delivered, and city officials have asked State Rep. Christel Truglia to assist to make sure that the state will hold the grant money aside since the money has been available to the city since 1989.

Mr. Jachimczyk said that Ms. Domonkos informed the Committee that the Board of Education move to the Government Center will not take place until perhaps March or April of 1992, as opposed to the earlier target date of February of '92.

 MATTER OF COLOR CODED PLANNING MAP AND ZONING MAP. Requested by Rep. W. Dennis White, D-1, 6/13/91. Held in Committee 7/8 and 8/5/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MR. JACHIMCZYK stated that a letter will be sent to Jon Smith, Director of Planning and Zoning requesting that he redouble his efforts in finding printers capable of producing a color coded planning and zoning map.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE: (continued)

 MATTER OF ESTABLISHING AN ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD. Submitted by Reps. Michael Larobina, D-16 and W. Dennis White, D-1, 7/16/91. Held in Committee 8/5/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MR. JACHIMCZYK said that Rep. Larobina discussed with the Committee the type of architectural review board some of the surrounding communities have; noting that Greenwich probably has the strongest. Mr. Jachimczyk stated that the Committee decided to send a copy of the Greenwich ordinance to the Law Department requesting that a similar ordinance be drafted for Stamford.

4. FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED RESOLUTION TO CORRECT THE NAME OF STILLWATER AVENUE NORTH OF THE E. GAYNOR BRENNAN GOLF COURSE TO STILLWATER ROAD. Requested by Rep. Robert DeLuca, R-14, 7/17/91. Approved for publication 8/5/91.

MR. JACHIMCZYK said a public hearing was held; no one from the public attended. He said the Committee voted six in favor with none opposed to approve the resolution and so Moved. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to approve the resolution correcting the name of Stillwater Avenue north of the E. G. Brennan Golf Course to Stillwater Road. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

PUBLIC WORKS & SEWER COMMITTEE - Peter Nanos, Chairman

MR. NANOS said the Public Works and Sewer Committee met on Thursday, August 29, 1991. Present were Reps. Fred Johnson, Joseph Lovallo, Carmen Domonkos, John Zimmerman, John Zelinsky and Peter Nanos.

IMPLEMENTATION OF A NEW POLICY ON RESIDENTIAL DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE;
 I.E., YARD DEBRIS, BULKY WASTE AT THE INCINERATOR REGARDLESS OF RESIDENT'S VEHICLE. Submitted by Rep. Joseph Lovallo, R-15, 4/9/91. Held in Committee 5/6, 6/3 and 8/5/91. Held on Pending Agenda 6/13/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

 MATTER OF SERIOUS FLOODING PROBLEMS CORNER OF 8TH & SUMMER STREET. Tenants never had flooding problems until May, 1991. Submitted by Rep. Sandra Goldstein, D-16, letter from Merchants of Eighth Street, Richard G. Weiss & Elaine Anderson, 2 Eighth Street, Stamford, CT 06905, 8/10/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MR. NANOS said he spoke to the Engineering Department and Public Works and they said they would look into the problem and hopefully, by next month, the problem will be solved.

HEALTH & PROTECTION COMMITTEE - Ruth Powers, Chairwoman

MS. POWERS said the Health and Protection Committee met on Wednesday, August 21, 1991. Present were Committee members Ruth Powers, Fred Johnson, and Joseph Lovallo; also Reps. Audrey Maihock, John Zimmerman and W. Dennis White. Invited guests present were Harry Falber regarding "Safe Stores" and Deputy Chief Walter Young.

1. MATTER OF INOPERABLE TRAFFIC SIGNALS. Submitted by Reps. Stanley Esposito, R-11 and Audrey Maihock, R-19, 5/30/91. Held in Committee 7/8 and 8/5/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MS. POWERS said that she received a call from Mr. Akhimie's office stating that he was on vacation and could not attend the meeting. Ms. Powers said that Deputy Chief Young stated at the meeting that police will direct traffic. He said there was some misunderstanding; however, the cost is absurd as the price for one police officer for a shift is \$236.00 at straight time. He said that if one officer is called in for an entire weekend, the cost would be over \$1,600 straight time. Ms. Powers said that Deputy Chief Young also expressed the same frustration that everyone else has regarding the lights. Ms. Powers stated that Mr. Akhimie will be called to next month's meeting.

2. FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE CONCERNING LOITERING. Submitted by Reps. James Rubino, R-7, and Michael Fedele, R-13, 6/10/91. Held in Committee 7/8 and 8/5/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

3. MATTER OF SALARY FOR ACTING FIRE CHIEF. Submitted by Rep. Ruth Powers, D-8, 7/17/91. Held in Committee 8/5/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MS. POWERS stated that at the time of the meeting, Corporation Counsel's letter was not received; since then, an opinion was received and the matter will be taken up at the Steering Committee meeting.

4. ENFORCEMENT OF LAWS CONCERNING MOTORCYCLES. Submitted by Rep. W. Dennis White, D-1, 4/17/91. Held on Pending Agenda 4/17/91. Held in Committee 8/5/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

5. MATTER OF INSTITUTING A "SAFE STORE" PROGRAM FOR STAMFORD. Submitted by Rep. John Zimmerman, D-17, 8/6/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MS. POWERS said the Committee heard an excellent presentation by Harry Falber and the Committee was impressed with the program. She said the Police Department and the Board of Education expressed reservations in regards to the program. Ms. Powers said that Corporation Counsel has been asked for an opinion.

PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE - Robert DeLuca & Thomas Pia, Co-Chairpersons

MR. DeLUCA said the Parks and Recreation Committee met on Tuesday, September 3, 1991, at 7:30 p.m. A public hearing was held and present at the meeting were Committee members Robert DeLuca, Thomas Pia, Gerald Rybnick, Patricia McGrath, Michael Fedele; also in attendance was President Sandra Goldstein, Reps. John Hogan, John Zelinsky, David Blum; Stan Cooper and Dr. Marc Peyser of the Board of Education; State Representative Ann McDonald of the 148th District and approximately 125 community-minded residents.

 MATTER OF LIGHTS AT BOYLE STADIUM. Submitted by Rep. Sandra Goldstein, D-16, 8/12/91.

Mr. DeLuca said the public hearing represented the democratic process in action. Mr. DeLuca said that he tried to establish a Committee to meet on the item but knowing that the Parks and Recreation Committee did not have the authority, the end result of the meeting was that Dr. Marc Peyser will meet with certain individuals, homeowners and Attorney Mickey Sherman to try to resolve the issue. Mr. DeLuca said that the meeting was a good one and the people attending felt that something was accomplished and are confident that with Dr. Peyser, Atty. Sherman and residents something will be accomplished that will be amicable to all parties.

EDUCATION, WELFARE & GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE - John R. Zelinsky, Chairman

MR. ZELINSKY said the Education, Welfare and Government Committee met on Wednesday, August 28, 1991, at 7:00 p.m. Present were Chairman Zelinsky, Vice Chair Maihock, Reps. Mellis and Domonkos; excused were Reps. DePina, Mitchell and Evanko. Also present was Rep. Thomas Pia and Mr. Allan Brown, Risk Manager.

Mr. Zelinsky said that a complete report received from Mr. Brown, Risk Manager, pertaining to the item was sent to all Board members. A copy is attached to these Minutes.

 RECORD OF ALL AUTOMOBILE ACCIDENTS OF CITY-OWNED VEHICLES AND REPAIR AND CONDITION OF SAID VEHICLES. Requested by Rep. Thomas Pia, R-7, 7/31/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MR. ZELINSKY said that Mr. Brown was asked questions is regards to some of the points made in his report and other questions were raised by the Committee and Rep. Pia. Mr. Zelinsky asked that this remain on the Agenda.

MS. POWERS said she had to comment on the report regarding how phenomenally good the experience of the city is in auto property damage claims, collision and property damage to other people. She said with the rising costs in medical and workers compensation, the one thing keeping the city afloat is the wonderful experience that we are self-insured.

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - Frank Mollo, Chairman

MR. MOLLO said the Housing and Community Development Committee met on Tuesday, August 20, 1991, at 7:00 p.m. Present were Reps. Elaine Mitchell and Frank Mollo and Richard Gitlen, Executive Director of Community Development. The Committee did not have a quorum, therefore item one is being Held.

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE: (continued)

 FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 648 SUPPLEMENTAL CONCERNING BUDGETARY PROCEDURES FOR THE STAMFORD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM. Submitted by Frank A. Mollo, Chairman, Housing and Community Development Committee, 5/15/91. Held in Committee 6/3 and 7/8/91. Approved for publication 8/5/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

 STATUS REPORT ON VARIOUS HOUSING AUTHORITY ACTIVITIES FUNDED BY THE STAMFORD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM. Requested by Rep. Frank A. Mollo, D-9, 7/29/91.

MR. MOLLO said a report was sent to all members of the Board; the report is attached to these Minutes.

URBAN RENEWAL COMMITTEE - Annie M. Summerville, Chairwoman - No report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE - Stanley Esposito, Chairman - No report.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE - Judith Evanko & Ellen Bromley, Co-Chairpersons

MS. EVANKO said the Transportation Committee met on Thursday, August 22, 1991 at 7:00 p.m. Present were Reps. Judith Evanko, Audrey Maihock, Joseph Lovallo and Deputy Chief Walter Young. Mr. Akhimie did not attend as he was on vacation.

1. MATTER OF PRIVATIZATION OF DIAL-A-RIDE PROGRAM. Submitted by Rep. David I. Blum, D-12, 11/14/90. Held in Steering 11/14/90. Held on Pending Agenda 12/12/90 and 6/13/91. Held in Committee 5/6, 6/3 and 8/5/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

2. MATTER OF PURSUING ADDITIONAL REVENUE GENERATING MEASURES VIS-A-VIS PARC-ADS, INC. Submitted by Rep. Sandra Goldstein per correspondence from Vincent Akhimie, Director of Traffic & Parking, 5/16/91. Held in Committee 6/3 and 8/5/91. Held on Pending Agenda 6/13/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

 MATTER OF EXCESSIVE SPEEDING ON STAMFORD STREET. Submitted by Reps. Sandra Goldstein, D-16 and John R. Zelinsky, D-11, 8/2/91.

 $\underline{\text{MS. EVANKO}}$ said that items three, four and five were all dealt together in the conversation.

Ms. Evanko said that Deputy Chief Young said the police patrol Bedford and Summer Streets and other streets when personnel is available or an area is called to the Department's attention because of complaints in regards to speeding.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE: (continued)

MS. EVANKO said the Deputy Chief told the Committee that there are four unmarked cars and radar and one to two traffic cars that basically patrol Bedford Street between 4:30 and 5:15 p.m. and Summer Street in the morning. The Deputy Chief told the Committee that the average speed on Bedford Street is 50 to 51 miles per hours and the speed limit is 30 miles per hours.

Ms. Evanko said the Committee was told that at the corner of Fifth Street and Bedford is where the major part of accidents occur because people try to beat the light or pull out from the postoffice dropoff boxes. She said the priority streets that the police patrol are Washington Boulevard, Summer Street, Bedford Street, High Ridge Road, Long Ridge Road and Shippan Avenue.

Ms. Evanko said that the Committee was informed that there were 70 accidents between Hoyt Street and Ridgeway between July 1, 1990 and August 16, 1991; the accident rate was down from the prior year. Ms. Evanko stated that out of the 70 accidents, 12 were with injuries and 58 without injuries. She said the decrease in accidents was due largely by the installation of larger red lights and the sequence of the traffic signals are a four-way delay with three seconds on each side; also there are additional signs posting the speed limit.

Ms. Evanko said the Deputy Chief Young told the Committee that there were two types of speeders; the young drive who is showing off and the commuters who are in a hurry to get home. He said that these were the ones that were involved in most of the collisions. Deputy Chief Young told the Committee that to decrease the number of speeder, the police have to be more aggressive doing traffic enforcement but there are priorities such as drugs, etc. The Deputy Chief said that there must be high compliance with traffic laws.

MS. SUMMERVILLE stated that she thought the Committee would hear more about resolving the situation. She said the statistics have been available to everyone at anytime.

MS. EVANKO said that Deputy Chief Young basically stated that it had to do with available personnel; if Bedford Street is being patrolled, and there is an alarm elsewhere, the police are called away to respond to the call.

MS. SUMMERVILLE said that she assumed that it is the same story; being short of help and priorities.

MS. EVANKO stated that was the impression she received.

MATTER OF CONTINUING SERIOUS AUTOMOBILE ACCIDENTS ON BEDFORD STREET.
 Submitted by Reps. Audrey Maihock, R-19 and John R. Zelinsky, D-11, 8/2/91.

SEE ABOVE REPORT

 MATTER OF DANGEROUS PEDESTRIAN CROSSWALKS/INTERSECTIONS IN THE CITY. Submitted by Rep. Thomas Pia, R-7, 7/31/91.

SEE ABOVE REPORT

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE: (continued)

 REVIEW TRAFFIC PATTERNS AND CONTROLS ON ALL ROADS AT THE BULLS HEAD INTERSECTION. Submitted by Reps. David I. Blum, D-12 and John R. Zelinsky, D-11, 8/7/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

SPECIAL COMMITTEES

HOUSE COMMITTEE - Gerald Rybnick, Chairman - No report.

COLISEUM AUTHORITY LIAISON COMMITTEE - David I. Blum, Chairman

MR. BLUM said the Committee met on Thursday, August 29, 1991. He said that he was present; there was no quorum. Mr. Blum said there were many other people present: Rep. John Zelinsky; Ralph Antonacci, Executive Director of the Stamford Community Arts Council; Joyce DiCamillo, Manager of the Young Artists Philharmonic; City Grants Director Sandra L. Dennies; Warren Dubin, Melissa Gluck, Renee Kahn, Executive Director of the Historic Neighborhood Preservation Group; Sam Kahn; and William Macklin, Director of the Black Artists Theater.

Mr. Blum said that Ralph Antonacci took notes at the meeting; Mr. Blum read the notes which are attached to these Minutes.

1. MATTER OF ALL ARTISTIC GROUPS FORMING INTO ONE ORGANIZATION CALLED "STARTS". Submitted by David I, Blum, Chairman, Coliseum Authority Liaison Committee, 4/5/91. Held in Steering 4/17 and 7/17/91. Held in Committee 6/3 and 7/8/91.

MR. BLUM said that item one can be taken off the Agenda as "STARTS" is no longer in business. At this point, Mr. Blum read the notes of the Meeting (attached to these Minutes).

2. STATUS REPORT ON THE OLD TOWN HALL. Requested by Rep. David I. Blum, D-12, 6/10/91. Held in Committee 7/8/91. Held in Steering 7/17/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

3. REVIEW AUDIT REPORT ON COLISEUM AUTHORITY AND STAMFORD CENTER FOR THE ARTS. Requested by Rep. David I. Blum, D-12, 7/17/91. Held in Steering 7/17/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

LABOR RELATIONS COMMITTEE - John J. Hogan, Chairman

Mr. Hogan left the meeting as he was not feeling well. Mr. Boccuzzi reported.

MR. BOCCUZZI said that there was no Labor Relations meeting because Mr. Barrett was ill and a meeting will be scheduled during the week of September 16 or sooner.

LABOR RELATIONS COMMITTEE: (continued)

 GUIDELINES FOR UNION CONTRACTS - 1) requirements for review of contracts by the Board of Representatives and 2) suggestions for content of contracts. Submitted by Rep. Ruth Powers, D-8, 10/11/90. Held in Steering 10/17, 11/14, 12/2/90 and 1/16/91. Held in Committee 3/4 and 8/5/91. Held on Pending Agenda 3/13/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

2. REVIEW COSTS OF HEALTH INSURANCE PAID BY THE CITY FOR EMPLOYEES. Requested by Rep. David I. Blum, 1/10/91. Held in Committee 2/4, 3/4 and 8/5/91. Held on Pending Agenda 3/13/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

 REVIEW OF LABOR NEGOTIATING PROCESS. Submitted by Rep. David I. Blum, D-12, 1/25/91. Held on Pending Agenda 3/13/91. Held in Committee 8/5/91.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - James Rubino & Ruth Powers, Co-Chairpersons
No report.

<u>DOWNTOWN REVIEW COMMITTEE</u> - Robert DeLuca & Annie Summerville, Co-Chairperson No report.

AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE - Robert DeLuca & John Boccuzzi, Members
No report.

RESOLUTIONS

1. SENSE-OF-THE-BOARD RESOLUTION CONGRATULATING THE BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF STAMFORD FOUNDATION, INC. ON THE OPENING OF THEIR NEW FACILITIES. Submitted by Reps. Sandra Goldstein, D-16, John R. Zelinsky, D-11, Frank Mollo, D-9 and Ruth Powers, D-8, 8/5/91.

MR. ZELINSKY Moved for approval of the resolution. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the resolution. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

MINUTES

- JUNE 3, 1991 REGÜLAR BOARD MEETING Approved as corrected by Rep. Audrey Maihock.
- 2. JUNE 26, 1991 SPECIAL MEETING RE FISCAL ITEMS Approved.
- 3. JULY 8, 1991 REGULAR BOARD MEETING Not ready.
- 4. AUGUST 5, 1991 REGULAR BOARD MEETING Not ready.

COMMUNICATIONS

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT - Upon a motion duly made and Seconded and Approved by a voice vote, the meeting was adjourned at 11:10 p.m.

Anne A. Kachaluba, Administrative Assistant and Recording Secretary

21st Board of Representatives

APPROVED:

Sandra Goldstein, President 21st Board of Representatives

SG:ak Enclosures

STAMVOTE - ATTENDANCE

22:18:44

09-04-1991

NO	NA MED	MO	MAME
NO	NAME	NO	NAME
1 P	PRS EVANKO, JUDITH		PRS DE PINA, GLORIA
2 P	PRS NAKIAN, MARIA	22	PRS DOMONKOS, CARMEN
3 P	PRS PIA, THOMAS	23	N/P CLEMMONS, GARY
4 P	PRS OWENS, BOBBY	24	PRS NANOS, PETER
5 P	PRS MC GRATH, PATRICIA	25	PRS PERILLO, MILDRED
6 N	I/P LYONS, RICHARD	26	PRS PAVIA, NICHOLAS
7 P	PRS ZIMMERMAN, JOHN	27	N/P MITCHELL, ELAINE
8 P	PRS RYBNICK, GERALD	28	PRS CARDILLO, DOMINICK
9 P	PRS MOLLO, FRANK	29	PRS MORRIS, SCOTT
10 P	PRS LOVALLO, JOSEPH	30	PRS HOGAN, JOHN J.
11 P	PRS MAIHOCK, AUDREY	31	PRS ZELINSKY, JOHN
12 P	PRS MARTIN, DAVID	32	N/P BROMLEY, ELLEN
13 P	PRS DE LUCA, ROBERT	33	PRS LAROBINA, MICHAEL
14 P	PRS ESPOSITO, STANLEY	34	PRS POWERS, RUTH
15 P	PRS STORK, PHILIP	35	PRS BLUM, DAVID
16 P	PRS FEDELE, MICHAEL	36	PRS JACHIMCZYK, DAVID
17 P	PRS RUBINO, JAMES	37	PRS BARRELLA, GUY
	PRS MELLIS, ELLEN	38	PRS JOHNSON, FRED
	I/P WHITE, W. DENNIS	39	PRS BOCCUZZI, JOHN
	PRS SUMMERVILLE, ANNIE		PRS GOLDSTEIN, SANDRA
	NOT PRESENT 5		PRESENT 35

STAMVOTE - VOTE PROCESSING

09-04-1991

22:19:43

ABS

			TEST VOTE Y	ES_	
				7	
NO		NAME	NO		NAME
1	YES	EVANKO, JUDITH	21	YES	DE PINA, GLORIA
2	YES	NAKIAN, MARIA	22	YES	DOMONKOS, CARMEN
3	YES	PIA, THOMAS			CLEMMONS, GARY
		OWENS, BOBBY	24	YES	NANOS, PETER
5	YES	MC GRATH, PATRICIA	25	YES	PERILLO, MILDRED
6	N/P	LYONS, RICHARD	26	YES	PAVIA, NICHOLAS
		ZIMMERMAN, JOHN	27	N/P	MITCHELL, ELAINE
		RYBNICK, GERALD	28	YES	CARDILLO, DOMINICK
9	YES	MOLLO, FRANK	29	YES	MORRIS, SCOTT
		LOVALLO, JOSEPH	30	YES	HOGAN, JOHN J.
		MAIHOCK, AUDREY	31	YES	ZELINSKY, JOHN
		MARTIN, DAVID	32	N/P	BROMLEY, ELLEN
		DE LUCA, ROBERT	33	YES	LAROBINA, MICHAEL
		ESPOSITO, STANLEY			POWERS, RUTH
		STORK, PHILIP	35	YES	BLUM, DAVID
		FEDELE, MICHAEL	36	YES	JACHIMCZYK, DAVID
		RUBINO, JAMES	37	YES	BARRELLA, GUY
		MELLIS, ELLEN			JOHNSON, FRED
		WHITE, W. DENNIS	39	YES	BOCCUZZI, JOHN
20	YES	SUMMERVILLE, ANNIE	40	YES	GOLDSTEIN, SANDRA

35

NO